ChecklistsChecklist


· UCC/RESTATEMENT
· (1) Is the K for a sale of goods or services?
· (A) Hybrid transactions 
· (i) Predominant Factor Test ( Which is most significant part of transaction?
· Majority of courts use this test
· (ii) Gravmen Test ( Does controversy in question relate to goods or services?
· IS THERE A K?
· (0) Was there a mutual manifestation of assent? §17
· What were parties express intentions based on how reasonable person would interpret them?

· (Embry, Lucy/Zehmer)
· Letter of intent (written memorial) create K, or note desire to continue negotiation? §27
· Create a K ( (Texaco/Pennzoil)

· Continue negotiating (Empro)

· (1) Was there an offer? 

· (A) Offer or invitation to bargain? (Nebraska Seed) 
· (i) Does it vest offeree w/ power to conclude bargain by accepting? §24
· (ii) Are most terms included? Are terms clear? §33
· (iii) Is offer made to one or many people? If many, “first come, first serve”?
· (iv) Does it indicate a desire to enter into a K?

· (v) Does it invite acceptance?
· (vi) Makes clear that upon acceptance, K will arise w/o further action from offeror?

· (B) Was offer revoked before it was accepted? (Dickinson/Dodds) §36 §43
· (C) Is it a firm offer? ( Offer held open even w/o consideration 3 months long max §2-205
· (i) Offer to buy/sell goods by merchant? Written and signed? 

· (2) Was there an acceptance?

· (A) Mirror Image Rule? 

· (B) Did acceptance include any additional terms? §2-207
· If yes ( add’l terms knocked out, UNLESS parties are Merchants (
· (i) Were terms material? 

· Yes ( Add’l terms are knocked out
· No ( Terms accepted unless notification of rejection given in reasonable time

· (ii) Were terms conditional on acpt? If yes, no K (Ardente/Horan) §61
· (iii) Did K expressly limit acceptance to initial terms? If yes, terms dropped §61
· (C) Was acceptance via performance? (Carbolic Smoke Ball)
· (i) Unilateral K? §30
· (ii) Option K? §25 §87
· (D) Was acceptance via silence? (Hobbs) §69
· (i) Did offeree accept benefit w/ reason to know they’re offered expecting payment? 
· (ii) Did offeror gives offeree reason to know silence can = assent? 
· (iii) Did previous dealings let offeree know silence can = assent?

· (E) Acceptance via clickwrap or browsewrap? (Specht/Netscape, Register/Verio)

· (3) Was there consideration? §71
· (A) Was promise induced by benefit, detriment, or counter-promise? (Otterbein Univ. ( NO; Hamer/Sidway ( YES)
· Past consideration not valid (Moore/Elmer) §87
· (B) Did promise ratify past moral consideration? (Mills/Wyman(NO; Webb/McGowin(YES)
· (C) Was consideration given for K modification? (Alaska Packers) §89 §2-209
· Is consideration even necessary for K modification? (Stump Home)

· (4) Are the terms certain and specific?

· Is quality of the good specified such that it can be determined if it conforms with expectations?

· (5) Does the contract detail the quantity sufficiently? 
· (6) Could promissory estoppel apply? §90
· (A) Is there consideration? If not (
· (B) Could promisor (1) reasonably (2) foresee to (3) induce reliance in promisee?

· (C) Did promisee act in reliance on promise?
· (D) Is promissory estoppel the only way to avoid injustice? 

· ( Which damages apply: Expectation (consideration replacement) or reliance (indpt basis of K)
· (7) Does it fall w/in the Statute of Frauds? 

· (A) Sale of land §110
· (B) K that can’t be performed w/in a year §110
· (C) Sale over $500 §2-201
· (8) Does it comply w/ Statute of Frauds?

· (A) Is the K reflected in writing that satisfies the statute? §131
· (i) UCC ( Quantity of goods must be stated; must be writing sufficient to indicate a K for sale has been made between parties §2-201
· (ii) Common Law ( (1) Parties (2) Nature of exchange (3) Most material terms

· (iii) Signature ( mark or symbol w/ intention of authenticating K ( Logo, initials, X
· (B) Can promissory estoppel apply even if K doesn’t comply w/ SoF? §139
· (C) Did P begin production of good specifically for buyer? §2-201(3) (Riley)
· INTERPRETTING K
· (1) Agreement vague (Peerless, Oswald/Allen) or ambiguous (Weinberg/Edelstein, Frigaliment)?
· Can the term be clarified w/ express language, course of performance, course of dealing, usage of trade? §2-208 §201 §202
· K preferentum – Ks interpreted using the worse terms for drafting party if term unclear

· (2) Is promise illusory? 
· Are both parties bound? Are both parties capable of breaching? 
· Can one party unilaterally determine not to perform? (Wood/Lucy(not illusory)
· Is the illusory promise cured by performance? 
· (3) Requirements/Output K? (Sun Printing, NY Cent. Ironworks, Eastern Airlines) §2-306
· (A) Is it an exclusive deal?
· (B) Do parties involved have outputs, i.e. running a business? 
· (C) Are parties operating in good faith ( speculating on K or legit business need? 
· (D) Are quantities unreasonably disproportionate to: (1) stated estimate (2) normal or comparable prior output or requirements?
· (4) Does parol evidence rule apply?

· Is the parole evidence being used to prove a K defense? If yes ( allowed
· Is K fully integrated or partially integrated? §210
· Can extrinsic evidence prove K is susceptible to other evidence? (Pacific Gas) §2-202
· Is extrinsic evidence outside the scope of the agreement? (Brown/Oliver) §213
· Is add’l term consistent w/ K such that it can supplement the written agreement? ( §216(1)
· Was term agreed to by separate consideration? Generally omitted from type of K? ( §216(2)
· (5) Is it a standard form K?

· (A) Was notice provided of terms sufficient to make P aware of them? (Carnival Cruise)
· (B) Are the terms reasonable? 
· BREACH
· (1) Did parties perform K in good faith? (Goldberg(NO; Tailored Woman(YES) §205
· (A) Are parties acting to maximize joint wealth? 

· (B) Percentage K 
· Test – If lessee and lessor were same person, would action be taken? 

· If minimum rent is compatible w/ fair market value, then % of gross receipts seems to be more bonus than essential part of K (Stop & Shop)
· (2) Is there an express warranty? 

· (A) Is information reasonably throught to be within knowledge of seller? ( warranty
· (B) Is info equally available to buyer? ( no warranty
· (C) Warranty or opinion? 

· Fuzzy statement ( opinion || Concrete statement ( warranty

· Statement must relate to goods being sold

· Needs to be part of the basis of the bargain

· (D) Does info available change are parties deal with each other over time? (Lorraine Corp)
· (E) Was warranty bargained for? (CBS)

· Doesn’t matter if it was believed or not, but must’ve been RELIED on
· (3) Is there an implied/default warranty? 

· (A) Merchant? ( Implied warranty of merchantability
· Does it meet the merchantability factors? §2-314
· Use reasonableness test

· (B) Fitness for particular purpose ( Seller must be merchant
· (1) Does seller know buyer has specific purpose for the good?

· (2) Does seller know buyer is relying on seller’s knowledge?

· (3) Did buyer actually rely? 
· (B) FOR UCC – merchantability and fitness warranties are default terms ( can be disclaimed

· (C) FOR RSC – Have to look at the context and see if such warranties should be applied
· (4) Did a party anticipatorily repudiate? §251
· (A) Does party have reasonable grounds to think other party will totally breach?

· (B) Did party demand adequate assurance?

· Allows suspension of party’s own performance

· (C) Did other party fail to provide assurance w/in reasonable time?

· If yes ( this can be treated as a repudiation

· (D) Was repudiation retracted before: §256
· (1) injured party materially changed position in reliance 
· (2) indicated to other party that he considers repudiation final?

· (5) Was breach total?

· (A) If yes ( breach occurred; can’t be cured

· (B) If no ( breach is partial (
· (6) Was breach material?   §241
· Is either party’s behavior strategic?
· Would it be difficult for one party to properly sue for the expectation they have on the K?
· (7) Was breach cured? 

· DEFENSES
· (1) Were parties competent enough to contract? §12 
· (A) Infancy §14 (B) mentally ill or defective §15 (C) intoxicated §16
· (2) Misrepresentation or opinion? §168 §169
· Fraudulent or material?  §162 
· Material ( Would the fact make a difference to reasonable person? OR did other party have reason to know it would make a subjective difference to the person 

· If yes ( voidable §164
· Fact vs. Opinion

· Accepted market value ( Fact
· No definite market value ( Opinion
· Opinion can be misrepresentation when there’s relationship of trust
·  (3) Duress ( Is assent induced by improper threat that leaves victim no alternative? §175
· If yes ( voidable

· (A) Does offer/threat reduce (duress) or increase (offer) possibilities?
· If 3rd party ( voidable unless other party didn’t know about duress & operated in good faith

· Improper ( (1) crime/tort? (2) threatened prosecution/civil trial? (3) threat of breach? 

· Would threatened act harm recipient & wouldn’t significantly benefit threat-maker?

· (4) Undue Influence? §177 ( voidable unless 3rd party and other party acted in good faith 
· (A) Was victim under domination of persuader?

· (B) Was victim justified in trusting the persuader?

· (C) Overpersuasion factors (Odorizzi)

· (5) Unconscionability? §208/§2-302
· (A) Two-step Test

· Procedural - reason. oppty to understand terms? grossly unequal bargaining power?
· Substantive – are terms unreasonably unfair/oppressive? 
· Sliding Scale ( Lots of one allows a little of the other
· (B) Inadequate consideration?

· (C) Would other party not assent to standardized form if he knew what was in it? §211
· (6) Mistake 

· Is fact believed to be true a present existing fact?

· Mutual Mistake? If yes ( voidable by adversely affected party §152
· (A) Was mistake basic assumption K was made on?

· (B) Have material affect on the agreement?
· (C) Did party bear the risk of a mistake? §154
· Did party have limited knowledge but enter into K anyway? 
· Unilateral Mistake If yes ( voidable by party unaware of mistake
· (A) Did party bear/allocate the risk? §154 ( who has better incentive to avoid mistake?
· (B) Did other party have reason to know of mistake or his fault caused the mistake?
· (C) Was it mistake on basic assumption of K & have material effect that’s bad for him?

· (D) Does effect of the mistake make enforcement of K unconscionable? 

· Mistake defenses ( (1) risk was allocated (2) mistake not central to K (3) no mistake
· (7) Impracticability? 

· (A) Did event occur after formation that reduced value of receiving the other party’s perf?
· (B) Was non-occurrence of the event a basic assumption of the K? §261
· If yes ( No duty to perform on K

· Did parties allocate risk of unforeseen event occurring? If yes ( no impracticability

· (C) Were goods identified when K made ruined w/o fault of either party? §2-613
· If loss total ( K is voided

· If loss partial ( Buyer can demand inspection & either avoid K or accept at lower cost

· (8) Frustration? §265
· (A) Did event occur after formation that increased cost of performance? 
· (B) Is party’s principal purpose substantially frustrated after K made w/o his fault by occurrence of an event the non-occurrence of which was a basic assumption of the K?

· If yes ( that party’s duty to render performance is discharged

· (9) General Concepts

· (A) Mistaken assumption must be shared

· If only one party is mistaken, usually they bore the risk of the assumption

· Exception: unilateral mistake

· (B) How to allocate risk

· (1) First, look at the contract ( “As is”? 

· (2) Then, look to see what the parties would have agreed to ex ante
· Who would’ve been the better insurer?

· Who is best informed to have known about the mistake or the change in circumstances

· The cow seller should’ve known more about cows than the buyer

· DAMAGES
· (1) Are there liquidated damages? (Kemble, Wassenaar, Lake River) §356 §2-718
· (A) Is it a penalty clause? ( Unreasonably large? 

· (B) Are damages uncertain? 
· Difficulty of producing proof of damages at trial

· Difficulty of determining damages contemplated when contracting

· Absence of a standardized measure of damages for breach
· Sliding scale ( the more uncertain, the more deference to the liquidated damages

· ( Can treat it as expectancy of zero profits? (would’ve made just enough to break even)
· (C) Are the liquidated damages a reasonable forecast of harm caused by breach?

· (D) Are you looking ex ante at time of contracting or ex poste at time of trial? 

· (E) DO EX ANTE AND EX POSTE ANALYSIS

· (2) Damage limitations

· (A) Were damages foreseeable? (Hadley/Baxendale, Morrow) §351
· (B) Can damages be determined w/ certainty? (Dempsey) §352
· (C) Were damages mitigated/covered? (Luten Bridge, Parker/20th Cent. Fox) §350
· Lost Volume Doctrine? (Neri)

· (2) Expectation Damages? 
· (A) Is there idiosyncratic value? (Groves(YES; Peevyhouse(NO) ( According to court…
· (B) Measure
· (i) Cost of completion? (Groves) Far greater than diminution? (unless idiosyncratic) (
· (ii) Diminution in value? (Jacobs & Young, Peevyhouse)
· (iii) Market value? (Tongish) §2-713
· (iv) Lost profits? 

· (C) Calculation

· (i) Loss of value of other party’s performance PLUS
· (ii) Other loss ( incidental/consequential damages MINUS
· (iii) Any cost of loss avoided by not having to perform

· (3) Reliance Damages?

· (A) Can expectation damages not be determined w/ certainty? (Anglia, Mistletoe)

· (B) What damages would put victim into same position if K had never existed?

· (4) Restitution? 

· Recovery outside of K for breach party? 

· (5) Would specific performance or injunctive relief be appropriate? 

· Sale of land? (Loveless/Diehl)

· Unique Goods (Cumbest/Harris, Scholl/Hartzell, Sedmak)

· Personal services? ( Not allowed (Lumley/Wagner, Duff/Russell)

· Agreement: An agreement is a manifestation of mutual assent on the part of two or more persons. Rest. §3
· Bargain: A bargain is an agreement to exchange promises or two exchange a promise for a performance or to exchange performances. Rest. § 3
· Breach: Nonperformance of a duty under a contract when it is due. Rest. § 235 (2)
· Contract: A promise or set of promises for the breach of which the law gives a remedy, or the performance of which the law in some way recognizes a duty. Rest. §1
· Goods: Anything movable at time of K, not including money
· Material Terms: Term so central to values exchanged it’s a fundamental basis of the bargain
· Merchant: person who deals in goods of kind of holds himself out as having knowledge or skill about the practices or goods involved in transaction
· Misrepresentation: A statement not in accord with the facts. Rest. § 159.
· Offer: An offer is a manifestation of willingness to enter into a bargain, so made as to justify another person in understanding his assent to that bargain is invited and will conclude it. 
· Promise: A promise is a manifestation of intention to act or refrain from acting in a specified way, so made as to justify a promisee in understanding that a commitment has been made. Rest. § 2(1). 
· Term of Contract: A term of a contract is that portion of the legal relations resulting from the promise or set of promises which relates to a particular matter, whether or not the parties manifest an intention to create those relations.  § 5
· Term of Promise, Agreement: A term of a promise or agreement is that portion of the intention or assent manifested which relates to a particular matter. Rest. § 5
· Unenforceable Contract: A k for the breach of which no damages or specific performance is available but which is recognized in some way as creating a duty of performance.
· Voidable Contract: A voidable contract is one where one or more parties has the power, by a manifestation of election to do so, to avoid the legal relations created by the contract, or by ratification of the contract to extinguish the power of avoidance
· (1) MANIFESTATION OF MUTUAL ASSENT (MoMA) 

· §17 - Each party must make a promise or begin or complete performance

· Can it be construed as a joke? (Lucy/Zehmer)

· Would reasonable person interpret words exchanged as intent to K? (Embry)
· Parties are held to their express intentions—combination of obj. and subj. standards

· §19(1) - Manifestation of assent made by written/spoken words or other acts or failure to act.
· §19(2) - Must know or have reason to know that other party will infer assent from his conduct

· §22 - MoMA can be made even though neither offer or acceptance can be identified and moment of formation can’t be determined

· §20(1) – No MoMA if parties attach materially diff meanings to manifestations AND:

· (1) Neither party knows or has reason to know meaning attached by the other, OR

· (2) Each party knows or has reason to know the meaning attached by the other

· §20(2) – Meaning of one of the parties attaches if:

· (1) that party doesn’t know or has no reason to know of a diff meaning, but the other party knows or has reason to know the meaning attached by the first party

· ( UCC has an inclination that when in doubt, a K exists ( very loose standard, easy to find K
·  (2) OFFER
· §24 – DEFINITION: Manifestation of willingness to enter into a bargain, made to tell other person his assent to the bargain is invited and will conclude it
· §2-204 – K for sale of goods may be made in any manner sufficient to show agreement, including conduct of both parties that recognizes the existence of such a K

· (A) K even if moment of creation is undetermined, if some terms are left open

· §26 – Not offer if other person knows it’s not intended to conclude the bargain
· If advertising is sent to many, usually not offer, but if ad has language of commitment or invitation to take action w/o further communication, could be deemed an offer
· Leonard/Pepsico – Commercial wasn’t offer to buy a jet w/ pepsi points; uses reasonable, objective person test
· §27 – Agreements may be preliminary negotiations, but if assent is sufficient to constitute a K, then anticipated written memorial doesn’t negate the agreement
· Empro – letter of intent wasn’t enough to form K

· ( Informal agreement can be binding when there’s no understanding that a signed writing is necessary to be legally bound and there is agreement on all essential terms of K
· Texaco – Press release & writings enough to prove K formation

· §29(2) – Offer can create power of acceptance in specific person, group, or to everyone
· §32 - In case of doubt offer is interpreted as inviting offeree to accept by promising to perf OR by rendering the perf, as the offeree chooses.
· §33(1) – Offer can’t be accepted unless terms are reasonably certain
· Nebraska Seed – letter to buy seeds not offer but invitation to make an offer

· §33(2) – Terms are certain if they provide basis for finding breach and giving a remedy
· §2-205 – Firm Offer ( offer by a merchant to buy/sell goods in signed writing that gives assurance that it’ll be held open(not revocable for lack of consideration; 3 months long max
· §2-206 – Order to buy good for prompt shipment is inviting acceptance by either prompt promise to ship or by shipment of conforming goods

· OFFER REVOCATION
· §36 – Offeree’s power of acceptance can be terminated by (1) rejection or counter-offer (C/O) by offeree (2) lapse of time (3) revocation by offeror (4) death or incapacity of offeror or offeree (5) non-occurrence of any condition of acceptance specified in terms of the offer

· §42 – Offeree’s power of acceptance is terminated when he receives from offeror a manifestation of intent to not entered into proposed K

· §43 – K revoked when offeror takes definite action inconsistent w/ K & offeree knows about it
· Dickinson/Dodds – P finds out D sold house to someone else, counts as revocation

· §40 – Rejection or C/O by mail doesn’t terminate power of acceptance until received by offeror

· If accept. is received by offeror before rejection arrives, still valid, otherwise it’s a C/O
· ( Counter-offer v. Request for clarification

· Test: A communication is a counter-offer only if it can be accepted

· ( Timing Default: Offeror is entitled to specify, otherwise (
· Duration is “reasonable time” 

· If parties face-to-face, offer expires when they part company
· OPTION K
· §25 – DEFINITION: Promise which meets requirements for K formation and limits promisor’s power to revoke an offer

· §45 – When offer invites perf. as acceptance, option K created when offeree begins perf.
· Offeror is bound CONDITIONAL upon completion of perf by offeree

· Petterson/Pattberg – offer withdrawn at doorstep, ‘cuz perf not complete
· §37 – Option K not terminated by C/O, revocation or death, unless terms for discharge met
· §87(1) – Offer is binding as option K if it’s (1) in writing and signed by offeror, (2) recites a purported consideration for making of the offer, AND (3) proposes an exchange on fair terms

· Nominal consideration is valid for short-term option Ks (even if not for normal Ks)

· §87(2) -  Offer which offeror should reasonably expect to, and does, induce substantial action by offeree before acceptance, is binding as option K if necessary to prevent injustice
·  (3) ACCEPTANCE
· §50 – DEFINITION: Manifestation of assent by offeree to terms invited or required by offer
· §34 – Partial perf may remove uncertainty and establish that a K is enforceable 
· If there’s been reliance on the K, even if uncertain, recovery may still be possible
· §61 – Acceptance that requests change of terms is valid unless the acceptance depends on assent to the changed terms
· Ardente – Acceptance asked for furniture w/ house sale; deemed conditional, thus C/O

· §63 – Mailbox Rule ( Acceptance made in manner by a medium invited by offer is effective as soon as it’s put out of the offeree’s possession, regardless of if it ever reaches offeror

· Option K acceptance must reach offeror to be valid
· §65 – Medium of acceptance is fine if it’s used by offeror or customary in similar transactions
· §66 – Acceptance by mail isn’t valid unless addressed and sent in ordinarily safe way
· §69 – Silence = acceptance, when: (1) offeree accepts benefit w/ reason to know they’re offered expecting compensation (2) offeror gives offeree reason to know silence can = assent (3) previous dealings let offeree know silence can = assent
· Hobbs – Eelskins sent to regular customer; never refused/returned, silence=acceptance
· §23 – If you don’t know of offer, you can’t accept it, even if performed according to its terms

· (4) UNILATERAL KS – ACCEPTANCE (acpt) BY PERFORMANCE (perf)
· §30 – Offer can invite or require acpt by words or by perf, otherwise, any reasonable manner or acpt is valid
· Carbolic – Ad for £100 if sick(counts as offer and acpt is perf of getting sick

· §54(1) – Offer for uniK doesn’t require notice of acpt unless requested or offeror would have no way of learning of perf. w/ reasonable promptness and certainty
· Start of perf must unambiguously signal acpt to offeror to count as acpt

· White/Corlies – offer to renovate w/ sp. wood(buying wood doesn’t as acceptance because offeror didn’t know wood was bought for his job, thus no notice

· §54(2) – If offeree has reason to know offeree won’t know about his acpt by perf, perf doesn’t constitute acceptance unless (1) offeree uses reasonable diligence to notify offeror (2) offeror learns of performance w/in reasonable time, OR (3) offer says notification of acpt not needed

· §62 – If offer allows acpt by promise or perf, starting perf is acpt by perf
· Counts as promise to complete performance
· (5) ASSENT IN E-COMMERCE
· Netscape – Downloading software not sufficient to show assent to terms that are hard to find
· Notice not sufficient in this instance
· Register.com – WhoIS database ( when terms are visible and clearly applicable, act of using the information attached to terms is enough to show assent to terms noted
· ( POLICY: Big companies like Microsoft put out software licenses that hit basically everyone, creating “Ks” ( But they work less like Ks and more like statutes (legislating not contracting)
· (1) AMBIGUITY AND VAGUENESS
· §201 – If both parties attach same meaning to terms, that meaning prevails
· (A) If they attach different meanings, it’s determined for party A if:

· (1) party A didn’t know of party B’s meaning, but party B knew of A’s

· (2) party A had no reason to know of party B’s meaning, but party B had reason to know of party A’s

· (B) Otherwise, neither party bound by other’s meaning, even if it means no assent

· Raffles/Wichelhaus – Peerless; Parties meant diff things, so no K

· Oswald/Allen – “Swiss Coins”/”Rare Coins”; same as Raffles
· §202(2/3) – Writing is interpreted as a whole; unless different intention is clear:
· (A) When language has a typical meaning, K interpreted w/ that meaning

· (B) Technical terms & words of art given tech meaning when used in that field

· §202(4) Course of perf given weight in interpretation if perf is accepted or acquiesced to
· §202(5) - Course of perf, course of dealing, usage of trade all given weight

· Weinberg/Edelstein – What’s a dress; Uses usage of trade to define a dress

· Frigaliment – Two definitions of chicken; Court should’ve found no K and let losses lie, but instead found for D, since D couldn’t prove his version of chicken

· §2-208 – Hierarchy: express terms ( course of perf ( course of dealing ( usage of trade

· (2) GAP FILLING/REQUIREMENTS CONTRACTS
· §34 – K may be certain even though either party can set some terms during course of perf
· (A) Part perf may remove uncertainty and make K enforceable

· (B) Reliance on a K may make a remedy appropriate, even if still uncertain
· Lady Duff Gordon – K valid because P’s promise implied by exclusivity, agreement to use his established business market, and to account for moneys generated

· §204 – When valid K is missing an essential term, a reasonable term for circumstance is supplied by court
· ( K preferentum – Ks interpreted using the worst terms for drafting party if term unclear
· §2-305(1) – K is valid even if price not settled; price is reasonable price at time for delivery if:
· (A) Nothing is said as to price, OR; Parties fail to agree to price like they’re supposed to, OR; Price is fixed to a market or standard by 3rd party, but doesn’t actually get set

· §2-305(2) – Price to be set by buyer or seller must be set by them in good faith
· §2-305(3) -  If one party is at fault for price not getting set, other party can cancel K or set reasonable price

· ( Illusory Promise if K allows one party to unilaterally decide not to perform
· If promise of one party has qualifications or limitations so strong that they negate it
· §2-305(4) – If parties agree to be bound only if price is set and it’s not set, there’s no K

· Sun Printing – Both price & duration of price left out; No K because gaps too great
· Majority protects freedom FROM K; Dissent freedom TO K
· §2-308 – Unless agreed otherwise, price for delivery of goods is seller’s business, or otherwise, his residence, but for sale of identified goods where parties know they’re someplace, that’s place of delivery
· §2-309 – In not specified, time for actions under K is a ‘reasonable time’
· §2-306 – Requirement Ks allows quantities to be set by good faith; can’t be disproportionate to any stated estimate, or otherwise must be based on comparable prior quantity
· NY Iron Works – P asked for way more iron in requirements K when price went down; Court held K was valid, so long as P’s orders were part of a reasonable good faith need
· Eastern Air Lines – Court finds requirement K valid based on past dealings/exclusivity
· ( Requirement Ks must be exclusive deals running business in good faith

· Must have outputs

· Any limitation on the party who has discretion suffices to establish mutuality

· Substantial decreases generally deemed more acceptable than increases

· (3) STANDARD FORM CONTRACS
· §211 – Standard form K terms that the party wouldn’t agree to if understood are left out of K
· Standard Ks require two things: Notice and Reasonableness
· Carnival Cruise – Forum selection clause upheld because court deems terms reasonable and because Carnival could be sued anywhere otherwise (Policy: costs too high for consumers)

· Caspi/Microsoft – Neg. option billing K upheld(P clicked agreement; reason. terms; notice
· ( POLICY: Economic Arguments for fine print Ks

· There’s plenty of competition, so you can choose not to deal w/ fine print if you want

· So long as there’s notice, it’s okay if consumer can’t choose terms—they can choose which companies they want to deal w/

· Companies will offer people the terms they want

· Monopolist only exerts it’s influence through price, not quality

· (4) BATTLE OF THE FORMS
· §2-204 – Court should focus on existence of agreement btwn parties & not be concerned about technicalities—should do what it can to uphold and enforce the K
· §2-207(1) – Acceptance w/ diff terms is valid K unless acceptance conditional on diff terms
· §2-207(2) – Add’l terms are proposals to K; Btwn Merchants terms are accepted UNLESS:

· (A) offer expressly limits acceptance to terms of the offer, OR
· (B) Add’l terms materially alter the K, OR
· (C) Notification of objection to terms if given in reasonable time

· §2-207(3) – Conduct of parties recognizing K establishes K even if terms wouldn’t otherwise

· Terms of K consist of terms parties agree to, with gaps filled by UCC

· §2-104 – Merchant: person who deals in goods of kind of holds himself out as having knowledge or skill about the practices or goods involved in transaction

· ( Material terms – Would result in surprise and/or hardship if it were to enter K
· ( Non-Material terms – Terms initial offeror would’ve agreed to in first place

· Union Carbide – Hot dog casings; No K because terms about back taxes are deemed material
· ProCD – Shrinkwrap agreement; Court doesn’t use §2-207; Instead uses §2-204; D accepted software license by not returning product; product must be returnable for this to be OK
· “Notice on outside, terms on inside” “and a right to return” if unacceptable

· M-W says oral K followed by written terms should make §2-207 apply

· Hill/Gateway – Terms come after purchase, no notice; Court says OK since terms were expected; K is formed when buyer keeps computer beyond 30 day return period
· Klocek/Gateway – Analyzed under §2-207; consumer didn’t accept add’l terms, so they’re out
· Treated as a proposal for modification, not a conditional acceptance
· (5) PAROL EVIDENCE RULE
· §2-202 – Strong presumption writing not integrated; K can be explained/supplemented (but not contradicted) by:
· (A) course of performance, course of dealing, or usage of trade, AND

· (B) evidence of consistent add’l terms unless court finds writing to be compl. integrated
· §209 – If writing reasonably looks like complete and specific agreement, it’s taken as integrated unless other evidence establishes that it wasn’t meant to be a final expression

· Thus a writing can’t prove it’s own completeness

· §210 – Any agreement that’s not completely integrated is partially integrated
· §212 – Interpretation of integrated agrmt based on meaning of terms in light of circumstances
· (A) Determined by trier of fact if depends on credibility of extrinsic evidence, or a choice among reasonable inferences, otherwise, it’s a question of law (for judge)
· §213 – Completely integrated agrmt kills prior agreements to the extent they’re w/in its scope
· Thompson/Libbey – K for logs; verbal warranty; K fully integrated, so oral evidence deemed parol & disallowed; 4 Corners Rule(can’t be impeached by extrinsic evidence
· Brown/Oliver – K for hotel; agrmt re: furniture deemed outside scope of written K—separate transaction; parol evidence allowed to determine if K was integrated
· Thus writing can’t prove its own completeness

· §214 – Evidence of prior/contemporaneous agreements are admissible to establish: 
· (A) that writing is not an integrated agreement

· (B) That integrated agreement is completely or partially integrated

· (C) Meaning of the writing, whether integrated or not

· Pacific Gas – Need to look at circumstance to determine integration; Judge should hold preliminary hearing to look at extrinsic evidence and determine if K is susceptible

· If yes, jury gets to see it, if not, it gets thrown out

· Trident – follows Pacific Gas, but Kozinski says allows Ks to never be final; uncertainty
· §215 – Prior or contemporaneous oral evidence is not allowed to alter integrated agreement

· §216(1) – Evidence of consistent add’l term is admissible to supplement an integrated agreement unless court finds agreement completely integrated
· §216(2) – Agrmt isn’t completely integrated if writing omits consistent add’l term which is:

· (A) agreed to for separate consideration; a term that might usually be omitted

· §217 – If parties orally agree that written agreement is subject to stated condition, the agreement isn’t integrated w/ respect to the oral condition

· (6) STATUTE OF FRAUDS (SoF)
· §110 – (1) executor K (2) suretyship (3) marriage (4) sale of land (5) K more than 1 year
· §2-201(1) – SoF applies to Ks for sale of goods for $500 or more
· §2-201(2) – For merchants, if confirm. of K sent in writing w/in reason. time & its received by other party, who has reason to know contents, SoF is satisfied, unless objected to w/in 10 days
· §2-201(3) – K valid despite the statute of frauds, if:  

· (A) goods are specially manufactured for buyer and can’t be resold, and manufacture or procurement begins before repudiation

· (B) if party against whom enforcement is sought admits K in testimony or pleading

· (C) if payment for the goods was made & accepted, or they’ve been received/accepted

· Riley – 5-year fuel K; SoF invalidates K; part perf doesn’t work(D paid P for fuel provided, so nothing due P; P recovers reliance for purchase of equipment--specific
· §125 – SoF usually doesn’t cover short-term leases for less than a year
· Boone – P moves to live on D’s farm, but D renegs when P arrives; K not written, so SoF makes K invalid; reliance not allowed because P sustained loss, but D didn’t benefit
· §129 – Land K can be enforced w/o SoF if party relied on K & no enforcement=injustice
· §130 – When 1 party had completed perf, 1-year provision of SoF doesn’t prevent enforcement
· §131 – SoF K enforced if evidenced by any signed writing, which: (1) reasonably identified subj. matter of K (2) indicates a K was made btwn parties, AND (3) states essential terms
· Cloud Corp. – Electronic written consent w/ typed signature valid for SoF; written confirmation sent to D re: increased quantity—D acknowledged receipt by E. writing
· §132 – They don’t all have to be the same writing
· §133 – SoF can be satisfied by signed writing not made a memorandum of a K
· §139 – K’s still enforceable despite SoF if promisor should reasonably expect to induce action on part of promisee and enforcement is only way to avoid injustice
· (A) Following facts can determine if injustice can be avoided only by enforcement:

· (1) availability and adequacy of other remedies, esp. cancellation/restitution

· (2) definite & substantial character of the action in relation to remedy sought 

· (3) extent that the action corroborates evidence of marking & terms of promise 
· (4) reasonableness of action
· (5) extent to which action was foreseeable by the promisor

· ( Policy: Benefit of Statute of Frauds
· Prevent misunderstanding; Avoid reliance on imperfect memory; Reduce costs of litigation—collection and evaluation of evidence

· Whole point is to keep party from claiming a K exists that doesn’t

· Exceptions are strong evidence that there must’ve been an agreement

· (1) CONSIDERATION
· §71(1/2) – Perf or promise is bargained for and constituted as consideration if its sought by promisor in exchange for his promise and given by promisee in exchange for that promise

· Johnson/Otterbein – donation to school not binding( no consid; D used money in normal way, so gift did nothing to induce action in D

· §71(3) – Perf may consist of: act other than promise, OR (2) forbearance, OR (3) creation, modification, destruction of legal relation

· §79 – If consideration is met, you don’t need benefit/detriment, equivalence in value exchanged, or “mutuality of obligation”
· Hamer/Sidway – Don’t drink/swear; Promise to abstain induced Uncle’s promise
· ( Inducement Test: Did benefit, detriment, or counter-promise induce the promise?

· Immaterial that promisor’s desire for consid. is incidental to other objectives (§81)

· §86 – Promise made in recognition of previous benefit is binding if need to prevent injustice

· (A) Promise isn’t binding if (1) promisee conferred benefit as gift, or promisor hasn’t been unjustly enriched, OR (2) value of promise is disproportionate to the benefit
· Moore/Elmer – fortune telling; past consid; promise wasn’t induced by action because it happened before promise was made

· Mills/Wyman – sick son; moral consid not valid unless preexisting obligation is re-made; parent not legally responsible for son after age 21

· Webb/McGowin – P jumps out window to save D; past moral consid valid( material benefit to promisor; consid acts as ratification of services rendered to promisor

· §87(1) – Offer is binding as option K if (1) it’s in writing and signed by offeror, notes a consideration for the offer, and proposes a fair exchange, OR (2) made irrevocable by statute

· §87(2) – Offer which offeror should reasonably expect to induce action of offeree before acceptance is binding when it does induce as an option K if necessary to avoid injustice

· ( Peppercorn Theory ( Doesn’t matter what is bargained for, so long as there’s a bargain
· (2) CONTRACT MODIFICATION/PRE-EXISTING DUTY RULE
· §89 – Promise modifying K not fully performed by either side is binding:
· (A) if mod if fair based on circumstances and not anticipated by parties when K is made

· (B) to extent that justice requires enforcement based on material change in position in reliance on the promise

· §2-209 – Agreement modifying K needs no consideration to be binding

· Modification must meet good faith standard
· Extortion of “mod” w/o legit commercial reason is violation of good faith
· Stilk/Myrick – Ship captain offers extra pay; Not held binding w/o consideration; crewmembers held to have done only regular duties, so no behavior to induce the promise of extra pay

· Alaska Packers – Fishermen try to force higher pay; Agreement not held binding for lack of consid; modification wasn’t done in good faith; “holdup” not allowed
· Brian Construction – Asphalt harder to deal w/ than expected; sub-contractor promised via modification to do something he hadn’t promised to do in initial K, so consid exists, mod valid

· Stump Home – K mod’s should be enforced w/o consid, rely on duress defense(prevent abuse

· (3) PROMISSORY ESTOPPEL
· §90 – (0) Consideration? (1) Promisee must be induced by the promisor’s promise (2) Must be reasonably foreseeable by promisor (3) Enforcement has to prevent injustice
· Ricketts – grandfather promised $$ to not work; no consid; P relied on promise by quitting job; D expected P to quit job in reliance on promise, so promise must be enforced
· Grenier – Mom promised land to son if he moves onto land; son moves on reliance of promise; no consid; Mom could expect son to rely on promise, so it must be enforced
· Allegheny College – donation to P requesting specific scholarship be created; P creates scholarship when some of money comes in, thus acted in reliance; promise must be enforced

· Feinberg/Pfeiffer – P offered retirement program as thanks; P quits job eventually in reliance on promise, can’t get another job; promise must be enforced

· James Baird – Linoleum; D offers mistake price, but rescinds before P accepts; w/o acceptance, promissory estoppel not available
· Drennan – P relies on D sub-contractor’s mistake bid for big job; P accepts D’s bid conditionally and used it in big bid; D’s bid enforceable, since option K was created

· Goodman – P sought dealer franchise; told app. accepted ( D induced P to incur cost in prep; D estopped from denying K since P relied on D’s statements to his detriment—even though no K
· Red Owl – P told he could open grocery if he took many steps; sold bakery, incurred costs ( promissory estoppel doesn’t require terms be as complete as binding offer would
· ( Two type of Promissory Estoppel

· (1) Substitute for consideration (Ricketts, Grenier, James Baird)

· Damages: Expectation damages (typically)
· (2) Independent basis for enforcing promises (Red Owl, Goodman, Drennan)

· No promise at all; maybe just an offer; maybe misrepresentation

· Damages: Reliance damages (typically)
( BUT ( It’s the court’s discretion, so court can go either way as justice requires 
· (1) GOOD FAITH PERFORMANCE
· §205 – Every K imposes duty on both parties of good faith & fair dealing in perf & enforcement

· ( For percentage Ks, when parties change business, needs to increase one party’s pie by at least as much as it decreases the other party’s pie, otherwise the change is in bad faith

· Must maximize joint wealth
· ( Parties can’t take advantage of gaps in the K to exploit situation when perf is sequential

· Goldberg – D agrees to percentage lease, but later pushes business out of store to get out of lease ( breached implicit covenant of good faith/fair dealing

· Tailored Woman – fur sales on 5th floor ( held in good faith since not restricted in lease
· Stop & Shop – percentage lease, later D wants only to pay rent, but not operate store ( Deemed in good faith since base rent was more than nominal; if rent far below market value then would be in bad faith; burden on proving rent below market on lessors

· (2) WARRANTIES (wty)
· §2-313(1) – Express warranties are created as follows:

· (A) (1) Any affirmation of fact or promise made by seller to buyer (2) which relates to the goods and (3) is part of the basis of the bargain 

· (B) Any description of the goods made as part of the basis of the bargain

· (C) Any sample or model that’s part of the basis of the bargain

· §2-313(2) – statement of seller’s opinion re: the goods doesn’t create a warranty
· §2-314(1) – If seller is merchant, warranty of merchantability is implied in K for sale of goods of the kind the merchant sells
· §2-314(2) – Merchantable goods must at least meet ALL the following factors:

· (A) pass w/o objection in trade under the K description

· (B) for fungible goods—are of fair average quality w/in the description

· (C) fit for ordinary purposes the goods are used for

· (D) are of the same quality and quantity w/in variations permitted by agreement

· (E) are adequately contained, packaged and labeled as agreement requires

· (F) conform to promises of fact made on container or label, if any
· §2-315 – If (1) seller has reason to know that (2) buyer is relying on seller’s skill/judgment to produce suitable goods (3) then an implied warranty that goods will fit that purpose exists
· Doesn’t require buyer to state the particular purpose

· §2-316(2) – To exclude or modify implied warranty of merchantability, language must mention ‘merchantability’ and if in writing, must be conspicuous

· To exclude implied warranty of fitness, must be conspicuous & in writing

· §2-316(3) – “As is” etc, excludes all implied warranties if buyer fully inspected good or refused to, no implied warrant as to defects

· Implied warranty can also be excluded or modified by course of dealing/perf or usage
· §2-714 – Measure of damages: Diff btwn value of goods accepted and value they would’ve had if they’d been warranted, unless special circumstances show proximate damages are diff

· Incidental and consequential damages can also be recovered
· §2-719(1) – Seller can limit the remedies allowed, including return/repair/replacement

· §2-719(2) – If clause deprives either party of substantial value of bargain, must be dropped

· ( POLICY – Reasons for warranties

· Freedom of K; information revelation; risk allocation; efficient precautions
· Limits function to deal w/ fact that buyers are imperfectly rational

· Lorraine Corp – Copy machines sold, then malfunctioned ( problems not w/in warranty

· Test – whether seller asserts fact buyer is ignorant about or merely states opinion/judgment on matter seller has no special knowledge of and that buyer might be expected to also have an opinion on and to exercise his judgment 

· Knowledge btwn parties would change over time as they did more business together

· CBS, Inc – P suspected D’s #s didn’t add up; D insisted they did and insisted K go through; P agreed but made clear P relied on D’s statements about #s ( wty deemed valid
· Required reliance necessary for breach of wty is established if warranty is bargained for
· (3) ANTICIPATORY BREACH/REPUDIATION
· ( Definition: Must be a definite and unequivocal showing that party won’t render promised performance when the time for it in the K arrives
· §250 – Definition: statement that party will breach in way to allow total damages, OR a voluntary affirmative act which renders party unable to perf w/o such a breach
· §2-609 – When reasonable grounds for insecurity arise, other party may in writing demand adequate assurance and suspend performance until he receives it, if hasn’t already been paid

· Failure to give assurance w/in 30 days is repudiation of the K
· §2-610 – When either party repudiates, the other party may (1) await perf for a reasonable time (2) resort to any remedy for breach (3) suspend his own performance or mitigate
· §2-611 – Until next perf is due, repudiating party can retract repudiation unless other party has materially changed position or indicated he considers repudiation final
· Can be by any method which clear indicates he means to perform

· §251  - When party has reasonable grounds to think other party will totally breach, party can demand adequate assurance of perf and can suspend own perf that hasn’t already been paid for

· Failure to provide assurance w/in reasonable time can be treated as repudiation 
· §253 – If P1 repudiates duty before committing breach ( gives rise to damages for tot. breach

· Discharges other party’s remaining duties to render performance

· §256 – Repudiation can be retracted if done so before injured party materially changes position in reliance on repudiation or indicates to other party that he considers repudiation final

· §257 – Asking repudiator to perf doesn’t change fact he repudiated—still allows suspension

· Hochster – D bailed on tour w/ P ( breachee doesn’t have to wait until time K would begin to sue, nor is he required to continue acting as though K is valid after he received repudiation
· Harrell – P agreed to buy condo from D, but later changed mind & asked to pull out; D took it as repudiation and sold to another buyer ( D held in breach ( must be definite & unequivocal manifestation of intent of repudiator that he won’t perf; request for change in terms not enough

· Scott/Crown – P sold wheat to D, but heard D couldn’t pay; refused to deliver more until assurances ( P in breach, since didn’t properly request adequate assurances in writing, etc

· (4) MATERIAL BREACH
· ( Breach is so big, it deprives the non-breaching party of the expectations of the K itself
· §241 – Factors determining material breach:
· (A) extent the injured party will be deprived of benefit which he reasonably expected
· (B) extent injured party can be adequately compensated for the lost part of that benefit
· (C) extent the party failing to perform or to offer to perform will suffer forfeiture
· (D) likelihood party failing to perf will cure failure, accounting for reason. assurances
· (E) extent behavior of party failing to perform comports w/ standards of good faith
· ( Strategic behavior will often help determine who actually materially breached

· Party not acting strategically may be the one who didn’t materially breach

· ( POLICY – What would parties have wanted ex-ante? 

· Incentives: avoids excessive care by perf party (and resulting high price)

· Risk allocation 

· B&B Equip – P joined co. but eventually didn’t perform well; was fired by D ( P held in material breach allowing rescinding of K to pay him corporate stocks
· Lane Enterprises – P hired D to coat metal for bridge construction; D ultimately wasn’t up to task; P asked for assurance that they could perform, but D wouldn’t give it until paid for 1st stage ( D in breach for failure to provide assurance; D likely trying to get out of a losing K
(1) INFANCY/INCOMPETENCY

· §12 – party has legal capacity to K unless he’s (1) under guardianship (2) an infant            (3) mentally ill or defective (4) intoxicated.
· §13 – Those under guardianship who enter into Ks; Ks are void (not voidable)
· §14 – Infancy: All Ks w/ person are voidable until day before he turns 18
· §15(1) – Mental Illness/Defect: 

· (A) unable to understand reasonably nature & consequences of transaction, OR 
· (B) unable to act reasonably in relation to transaction & other party has reason to know 
· §15(2) – If K made on fair terms & the other party w/o knowledge of mental illness/defect, K can’t be avoided to extent that K has been perf in whole/part or circumstances have changed & avoidance would be unjust ( If so, court may grant relief as justice requires.
· §16 – Intoxication: (1) unable to understand reasonably nature & consequences of transaction, OR (2) unable to act in a reasonable manner in relation to transaction.
(2) MISREPRESENTATION 
· §159 – Definition: assertion not in accord w/ the facts
· §161 – Non-disclosure is equivalent to an assertion the fact doesn’t exist when:
· (A) when assertion is needed to keep another fact from being misrepresentation
· (B) where it would correct mistake of other party of basic assumption of K
· (C) where other party is entitled to know fact based on relation of trust between them
· §162(1) – Misrep is fraudulent when maker intends statement to induce party to agree, AND:
· (A) knows or believes statement isn’t in accord w/ the facts, OR
· (B) doesn’t have confidence that what he’s saying is true
· (C) knows that he doesn’t have the basis that he states or implies for the assertion
· §162(2) – Material if it would likely induce reasonable person/buyer to manifest his assent
· §164(1) – If misrep is fraudulent/material & other party justifiably relies on it, K is voidable
· §164(2) – Same as above but from 3rd party, voidable unless other party doesn’t know about the misrep and in good faith gives value or relies materially on the transaction
· §167 – Induces a party’s manifestation of assent if it substantially contributes to decision
· §168 - Assertion is opinion if it expresses only belief, without certainty of fact or expresses only a judgment of quality, value, authenticity, etc
· §169 – Recipient of opinion isn’t justified in relying on it,  unless:
· (A) there’s such trust and confidence in opinion-maker that reasonable to rely on it, OR
· (B) reasonably believes that, as compared with himself, opinion-maker has special skill, judgment or objectivity with respect to the subject matter, OR
· (C) person is particularly susceptible to this particular misrep for special reason
· ( Material ( Would the fact make a difference to reasonable person? OR did other party have reason to know it would make a subjective difference to the person 
· ( Fraudulent ( Victim can have relied on it subjectively; Reasonable standard unnecessary
· Halpert – P entered K to sell house to D; D asked about termites, P said there were none, but there were; P didn’t know ( when parties relies on innocent misrep. of material fact, K voidable
· (3) DURESS

· §175 – If assent induced by improper threat that leaves victim no alternative, K is voidable
· If by 3rd party, still voidable unless other party didn’t know of duress, operated in good faith, and gives value or relies materially on the transaction
· §176(1) – A threat is improper when: 
· (A) what is threatened is a crime/tort
· (B) what is threatened is a criminal prosecution
· (C) threat is use of civil process and made in bad faith
· (D) threat is breach of duty of good faith/fair dealing under K w/ recipient
· §176(2) – Threat is improper if the resulting exchange isn’t on fair terms and:
· (A) threatened act would harm recipient and wouldn’t significantly benefit threat-maker
· (B) effectiveness of threat is increased a lot by prior unfair dealing by threat-maker
· (C) what is threatened is otherwise a use of power for illegitimate ends
· ( Obligation not to worsen the status quo, but no obligation to improve it
· ( Opinion can be misrepresentation when there’s relationship of trust
· Hackley – P needed money for work done immediately, D refused to pay full amount ( not held as economic duress for fear no one would negotiate w/ financially needy party

· Loral – D got K w/ navy, hired P for components; P refused to hand them over until they were paid more ( Held economic duress ( P threatened to breach; D couldn’t get goods elsewhere; suing for damages wouldn’t ultimately be effective remedy
· Progressive – aerator ( must complain about the alleged duress to claim duress later; puts other party on notice of alleged duress; helps court identify nature of modification
· (4) UNDUE INFLUENCE

· §177 – Undue influence is unfair persuasion of the party who is under the domination of the persuader and whose justified in trusting the persuader

· Makes the K voidable by the victim

· If by 3rd party, voidable unless other party acted in good faith (see §175)

· Overpersuasion characteristics (Odorizzi)
· (1) Discussion of the transaction at an unusual/inappropriate time
· (2) Consummation of the transaction in an unusual place
· (3) Insistent demand that the business be finished at once
· (4) Extreme emphasis on untoward consequences of delay
· (5) Use of multiple persuaders by dominant side against single servient party
· (6) Absence of 3rd-party advisers to the servient party
· (7) Statements that there’s no time to consult financial advisers or attorneys
·  (5) UNCONSCIONABILITY (UNC)
· §2-302/§208 – If any part of K is UNC, court may refuse to enforce it, or may void/limit term
· Parties should be given reasonable opportunity to present evidence about the commercial setting, purpose, and effect of the term to aid court in deciding
· §211 – If standardized-form-writing party has reason to believe other party wouldn’t assent if he knew that the writing contained a particular term, that term isn’t part of the agreement
· ( Relevant factors include: 
· Whether clause is contrary to public policy
· Overall imbalance
· Inadequacy of consid. doesn’t always invalidate bargain, but gross disparity in values exchanged might be important factor
· Court will refuse to enforce agreements that seem to be too one-sided
· Weakness in bargaining process
· Gross inequality of bargaining power, together w/ terms unreasonably favorable to stronger party can show elements of deception or compulsion, or might show weaker party had no meaningful choice
· Clauses often drafted using fine-print
· ( Two-step test
· Procedural  - reason. oppty to understand terms? grossly unequal bargaining power?
· Substantive – are terms unreasonably unfair/oppressive? 
· Sliding scale -=> Lots of one allows a little of the other
· ( VERY HARD TO WIN ON
· Williams/Walker-Thomas – installment payments on household goods; P defaults and D took all goods, not just one defaulted ( K deemed unconscionable; P had no opportunity to understand the K and didn’t have a meaningful choice to choose otherwise
· Gatton – T-mobile subscriber tried to get out of service agrmt; arbitration clause/class action waiver ( Use of K of adhesion establishes minimal degree of procedural UNC ( only way to sue is via class action for small fees, so UNC to disallow class action; makes D judgment-proof
· Fine print is per se procedurally unconscionable
· POLICY: The idea that the consumer is a rational actor is very problematic

· Assumes that because people are buying something, they’re comfortable with terms offered, when in reality, they’re just not shopping around enough or are just too lazy
· (6) MUTUAL MISTAKE
· §151 – Mistake is a belief that isn’t in accord w/ the facts
· Doesn’t have to be articulated; mistake can be in an assumption made
· Party’s prediction/judgment re: future events, even if erroneous isn’t a mistake
· Erroneous belief re: contents/effect of a writing that expresses an agreement is mistake
· §152 – If both parties make mistake at time of K re: basic assumption K was made, and has material effect on agreement, K is voidable by adversely affected party unless he bears risk
· Test – Does error make exchange less desirable for one party and more for the other?
· §154 – A party bears the risk of a mistake when:
· (A) risk is allocated to him by agreement of the parties, OR
· (B) he’s aware when K is made that h only has limited knowledge about the mistake the facts relate to, but treats that limited knowledge as sufficient, OR

· (C) risk is allocated to him by court on grounds that it’s reasonable to do so

· §157 – A mistaken party’s fault in failing to know/discover facts before making a K doesn’t disallow avoidance unless his fault is a failure to act in good faith/fair dealing

· ( Materiality – How fundamental is discrepancy between expected and actual exchange? 

· ( Assumption must be shared by both parties
· ( If risk was allocated ( no rescission; If risk wasn’t allocated ( rescission allowed
· Sherwood/Walker – Pregnant cow ( voidable since parties wouldn’t have made K unless understanding that cow was barren
· Nester – D sold all pine on land; turned out to be less valuable than either party thought ( K not voidable since it was equally impossible for either party to determine value ‘til wood was cut
· Wood/Boynton - P sold small stone to D, turned out was diamond ( K not voidable; P can’t repudiate sale because she made a bad bargain; P bore risk

· Lenawee – P bought land from D turned out to be condemned for sewage ( P assumed risk in K based on “as is” clause in K, so not voidable 
· (7) UNILATERAL MISTAKE
· §153 – If one party makes mistake on basic assumption he made K on and it has a material effect on the agreement that’s adverse to him, K is voidable if he doesn’t bear risk (§154) AND
· (A) effect of the mistake makes enforcement of K unconscionable

· (B) other party had reason to know of the mistake or his fault caused the mistake

· §160 – Action intended or known to be likely to prevent another from learning a fact is same as an assertion that the fact doesn’t exist

· §161 – Non-disclosure of fact known to a party is same as an assert that fact doesn’t exist if:

· (A) he knows disclosure is necessary to prevent a previous assertion from being a misrepresentation or from being fraudulent or material
· (B) he knows disclosure would correct a mistake of other party re: basic assumption the party is making the K on and when it would be failing to act in good faith

· (C) he knows disclosure would correct other party’s mistake about contents/effects of the writing that embody the agreement as a whole

· (D) where other person is entitled to know the fact because there’s relationship of trust

· Tyra/Cheney – K for school repair; P submitted initial bid correctly, but re-submitted later missing $1000; D only paid lower price ( D knew of mistake and P didn’t, so no K

· P shouldn’t be allowed to profit from K; restitution only allowed
· Laidlaw/Organ -  Tobacco purchase; P knew tobacco blockade was ending; D asked if any price changes could be expected and P said no ( SCOTUS allowed D to take back tobacco 
· (8) IMPRACTICABILITY
· §261 – When party’s pref is made impracticable after contracting, without his fault, on non-occurrence of an event the occurrence of which was a basic assumption of K, no duty to perf

· §263 – If existence of specific thing is necessary for perf of a duty, its failure to come into existence/destruction, which makes perf impracticable, is an event the non-occurrence of which was a basic assumption of the K

· §2-613 – When K requires goods identified when K was made, and the goods are ruined w/o fault of either party before risk of loss passes to buyer, then:
· (A) if loss is total, K is avoid; AND

· (B) if loss is partial, buyer may demand inspection & at his option treat K as avoided or accept goods with due allowance from K price for deficiency in quality
· But w/o further right against seller

· §2-615(A) – Delay in delivery isn’t breach if perf was made impracticable by occurrence of a contingency the non-occurrence of which was a basic assumption of K

· ( Assumption must be shared by both parties
· ( Can have explicit or implicit risk allocation ( can be implied from custom/business norms
· Paradine – Foreign army invades land ( Still have to pay rent
· Taylor/Caldwell – D leased theater to P, but after it burned down ( K is void since existence of property was essential part of K

· (9) FRUSTRATION
· §265 – If party’s principal purpose is substantially frustrated after K is made, w/o his fault, by occurrence of event the non-occurrence of which was basic assumption of K, that’s party’s duty to render perf is discharged
· ( Assumption must be shared by both parties
· Krell/Henry – No coronation after all ( Point of K is eliminated and neither party could expect it, so K is voidable
· (1) EXPECTATION DAMAGES
· §344 – DEFINITION: Interest in having benefit of the bargain by being put in as good a position as if K had been performed

· Hawkins/McGee – P given diff btwn value of perfect hand and current hand
· §347  - Measure: Loss in value of other party’s perf + any other incidental/consequential loss – any cost or other loss that was avoided by not having to perform

· ( Economic rationale ( Perfect expectation damages force  promisor to internalize costs of the promisee from breach ( maximizes gain to both parties

· (1) provides right incentives to induce efficient breach when cost of perf exceeds benefit 

· (2) victim made whole via damages (in theory) 

· (3) save negotiation costs

· ( Full expectation damages can induce excess reliance/investment ( can fight w/ liq dam
· ( Courts prefer expectation damages ( forces promisor to treat promisee’s losses as his own

· ( Diminution in value – Diff btwn market value of what was promised & what was delivered

· ( Cost of Completion – Amount required to completely fulfill contractual obligations
· (2) RELIANCE DAMAGES
· §344 – DEFINITION: Interest in being reimbursed for loss caused by reliance on K by being put in as good a position as if K had never been made

· §349 – If party can’t prove profit, can recover reliance instead; good for losing Ks; burden on party in breach to prove loss injured party would’ve suffered—then subtracted from reliance

· Mistletoe – P bought equipment for K that was breached, was allowed recovery for reliance costs even though no profit had yet been generated; D didn’t prove P’s loss
· Reliance generally a better measure of damages for a losing K
· (3) RESTITUTION DAMAGES
· §344 – DEFINITION: Interest in having any benefit conferred on other party restored

· §371 – Measure: (1) Reasonable value to other party of what he received in terms of what it would’ve cost to get normally OR (2) Increase in other party’s property value

· Recovery is normally more generous for a benefit that has been conferred by perf

· If benefit may reasonably be measured in different ways, left to discretion of court

· Bush/Canfield – P paid for barrels of flour in advance, D breached. P recovered money given in advance, even though price of flour had gone down a lot

· Cotnam/Wisdom – P performed surgery on D after street car wreck(Quasi K(P can recover customary price for surgery since D would’ve wanted surgery, if conscious

· Can’t get restitution for value of life because it’s too high

· ( Quasi-K requirements((1) No opportunity to negotiate (2) Very likely party would accept K
· §374 – Breaching party can get restitution for any benefit conferred via part perf or reliance minus the loss caused by breach 

· Britton/Turner – P worked 9 months of 1 year K, then breached; Got restitution for the value of the 9 months of work given to D; 

· Restitution is cause of action, not measure of damages(sues for quantum meruit
· ( Restitution for the party in breach can’t exceed K price
· ( Guidelines for what method to measure restitution

· Market value tends to be preferred(fairest and most balanced

· If there’s fault in conduct of conferrer, court may award lowest measure of relief

· If one measure is disproportionately large/small, fairness might require not choosing it

· If recipient guilty of improper conduct, highest measure is likely used

· If benefit requested, any price agreed to is evidence of value & might B used over others
· (4) REMEDIES
· §345 – Remedies: damages, specific perf, restoration of specific thing, declaration of rights
· §346 – If breach caused no loss or can’t be proved, nominal damages can be awarded
· §348 – If defective or unfinished construction, recovery can be:

· (A) Diminution in market price caused by breach and loss isn’t sufficiently certain

· (B) Reasonable cost of completing perf or remedying the defects, if cost isn’t clearly disproportionate to probable loss of value caused by breach

· ( To be fully compensatory, damage aware should include promisee’s idiosyncratic value
· ( Overcompensatory award
· Causes strategic behavior to force breach from other party

· Might be too expensive to enter into K

· Might not breach when it’s economically beneficial for both parties for breach to occur

· Excessive precautions from trying to prevent breach

· ( Undercompensatory award
· Would create too many breaches
· Jacobs & Young – Reading pipes(Cost of completion inefficient, would require destruction of house; substantial performance, so diminution of market price is OK.

· Cardozo notes that diminution of value is appropriate because breach was willful
· Groves – Gravel land needed grading(Cost of completion used cuz of idiosyncrat. value

· Peevyhouse – Stripmining left land in bad shape(Diminution used cuz of efficiency

· Court says cost of completion would create economic waste(money put into the land would be more than land would be worth

· Fails to take into account idiosyncratic value

· §2-712 – Buyer may cover by making good faith, reasonable purchase of goods in substitution

· (A) Buyer can recover from seller in dam. difference btwn cost of cover and K price, including incidental or consequential dam., less expenses saved from breach

· §2-713 – Measure of dam. for non-delivery or repudiation of seller is difference btwn market price at time buyer learned of breach and K price + incidental/consequential – loss saved

· Tongish – market price, not lost profits, used to set damages, since it encourages honoring of Ks and market stability/efficiency

· Point of K is for parties to trade risk
· §2-706 – When buyer breaches, seller may resell goods reasonably, in good faith

· (A) Can recover diff btwn resale price and K price + incid./conseq. – expenses saved

· §2-708(1) – Measure of damages for seller is diff btwn market price at time and place for tender and K price + incid/conseq – expenses saved

· (5) LIMITATIONS
· FORESEEABILITY 
· §351 – Damages not recoverable if party in breach didn’t have reason to foresee the loss as a probable result of the breach when K was made

· (A) Loss is foreseeable if it follows from breach (1) in ordinary course of events OR (2) as result of special circumstances, beyond ordinary events, breachor had reason to know

· (B) Court may limit damages to only reliance to avoid disproportionate compensation

· Haley/Baxendale – Shipper didn’t foresee (or consent to) loss from P’s business not running

· Full insurance creates moral hazard ( no reason to be careful

· Promisee is often the best cost avoider; promisee limits damages by giving full info to the shipper, which allows shipper to price cost appropriately

· Morrow – Bank not liable for failing 2 inform of safety box availability when coins stolen

· Tacit Agreement Test(Did party at time of K tacitly agree to be bound to more than ordinary damages in the case of his breach?

· Rejected by the UCC (§2-715) and most jurisdictions

· CERTAINTY
· §352 – No damages for loss beyond an amount evidence establishes w/ reasonable certainty
· Dempsey – Couldn’t establish what profits would’ve been, so couldn’t recover them; No replacement of Dempsey possible; Also no pre-contractual expenses recoverable

· Anglia – Recovery allowed because reliance chosen, not expectation; Actor could’ve been replaced, but breached too late into K to allow replacement

· Alt. interpretation ( Court awarded expectation dam. w/ zero profit assumption

· AVOIDABILITY
· §350 – No damages for loss injured party could’ve avoided w/o undue risk/burden
· (A) Doesn’t apply if reasonable but unsuccessful effort made to avoid loss

· Luten Bridge – Co. refused to stop building bridge after repudiation; no recovery for costs spent on work after repudiation

· Parker/20th C. Fox – Parker didn’t have to take other movie after D breached(role was both different and inferior to original role(Deals w/ idiosyncratic value(speculative
· Very difficult to have mitigation defense in employment Ks(too speculative

· ( Mitigation gives P an incentive to avoid needless cost; forces P to take D’s losses as his own
· ( No obligation to mitigate if it’s difficult, onerous, or in any way risky

· §2-708(2) – If measure of dam is inadequate to put seller in as good a position as perf, then measure of damages is profit which seller would’ve made from full perf by buyer

· Neri – Lost volume ( Unlimited # of boats to sell; cover not possible
· If sellers in short supply, Neri is right, if buyers in short supply, Neri wrong
· (6) LIQUIDATED DAMAGES (LD)
· §356/§2-718 – Liquidated damages must be reasonable based on anticipated or actual loss caused by breach and difficulties of proof of loss; Unreasonably large damages is unenforceable

· Kemble – liq. dam. deemed penalty(sum paid out doesn’t change based on how breach

· Wassenaar – liq. dam. can include consequential damages(breach affected more than just loss of pay; mitigation not required when employment K includes liq. dam.

· Lake River - why shouldn’t modern court should not enforce penalty clause on corps?

· ( Enforceable if at time of contracting: (§356/§2-718)

· (1) LD amount is a reasonable estimate of anticipated loss, AND

· (2) Damages are hard to estimate, AND 

· (3) Hard to obtain an adequate remedy otherwise (UCC only) 

· ( Otherwise, unenforceable as penalty
· ( LD are enforceable when actual damages are higher than liquidated amount

· ( Can get around penalty clause by giving money out as bonus instead
· (7) SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE
· §2-716 – Sp. perf ok where goods are unique or if reasonably seems like buyer can’t cover

· Cumbest/Harris – hi-fi stereo; deemed unique of difficult enough that sp perf is ok

· Scholl/Hartzell – P tries to buy ’62 corvette from D, no sp perf(K not fully executed

· Sedmak – Special Corvette allows sp. perf ( buying one would be very difficult

· ( Default rule for sale of land allows specific performance for non-breaching party

· Burden on D to show that specific perf shouldn’t be awarded; 

· Burden on P to show that specific perf SHOULD be awarded for sale of goods
· Loveless/Diehl – D leased farm to P w/ option to buy; P made improvements, then D refused to sell(sp. perf allowed—standard remedy for sale of land; burden on D to prove otherwise

·  ( Promisee is entitled to seek neg. injunction restraining promisor from performing during K period w/ promisee, ONLY if remedy in damages would be inadequate (§367)

· Policy for injunctions ( (1) protect employer’s relationship-specific investments        (2) allows employees to credibly commit
· Policy against injunctions ( (1) involuntary servitude (2) protection of employee’s livelihood (3) foster competition

· If there’s no other way for D to make a living, then neg. stipulation will be struck down
· Lumley/Wagner – P refused to sing at D’s theater after K saying she would(D got injunction for P to stop singing at other theater; injunction allowed because of negative stipulation in K

· Express exclusivity 

· Duff/Russell – Injunction allowed w/o negative stipulation, since P couldn’t sing at both places at same time

· Implied exclusivity

· ( Pros of specific performance

· Lower litigation costs

· More likely than damages to compensate fully (esp for “unique goods”; subjective value)

· Courts v. parties making determinations of value

· ( Cons of specific performance

· Courts not good at administering/supervising

· Costly to implement

· Some one-shot deals not suitable for sp. perf (e.g. Hawkins)

· Bargaining process can break down, leading to inefficient performance (thus excessive precaution against breach
· Battle of the Forms
· §2-207 – knockout rule

· RSC ( mirror image rule, last shot rule

· Warranties

· UCC – merchantability & fitness warranties are default terms

· RSC – have to look at context to see what warranties are applied

· Contract Modification

· UCC – Doesn’t require consideration – only requires “good faith”

· RSC – Mod must be fair based on circumstances and not anticipated by parties when K is made
· OR if justice requires enforcement based on material change in position in reliance
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